
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES PERMIT PROCESSING FEE – FEE STUDY 

FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 
(PUR 17-030) 

 
POSTED 10-06-17 
 

October 5, 2017 
 

City of Stockton City 
Hall, First Floor 

                    425 North El Dorado Street 
                    Stockton,  CA  95202-1997 
 
 

Sent via email to Makinde.Falade@stocktonca.gov and Mary.Garcia@stocktonca.gov 
 

Dear Ms. Falade and Ms. Garcia: 
 

Berry Dunn McNeil & Parker, LLC (dba BerryDunn) respectfully submits the following 
questions regarding the City of Stockton’s Request for Proposal # PUR 17-030 for a 
Development Services Permit Processing Fee – Fee Study: 

 
1. Does the City desire that certificates of insurance be provided with the proposal, 

or upon award of contract?   When selected. 
 

2. How many references does the City desire?  3-5 References with Similar Public 
Agencies that have similar populations.  

 

3. If we must take exception to a term of the City’s Sample Contract in Exhibit A, where 
may we indicate that exception in our proposal?   In the miscellaneous section. 

 

4. Does the City have a budget for this project? If yes, can it be shared?  Yes, but it 
cannot be shared. 

 

5. Does the City have any target milestone dates other than the completion date of 
June 30, 2019 (e.g., project start, phase 1 completion, etc.)? If yes, can these dates 
be shared? 
The target milestones are set forth in the RFP.  “The City expects the project to 
be accomplished in two phases, with the first phase focused on Building, 
Planning and Fire Prevention, and second phase focused on Municipal Utilities 
and Development Engineering.  The respondent is expected to present 
recommendations to the City’s Development Oversight Commission and City 
Council for each phase“. 

 

6. Can additional detail be provided about what is requested as part of the workflow 
review? Are as-is and to-be workflow diagrams using a tool like Microsoft Visio 
desired?  
No additional is available at this time.  Additional details will be worked out with 
staff as need be.  Workflow diagrams can be provided in Microsoft Visio format 
with accompanying PDF export. 

 



7. Does the City have a desired or target number of cities within San Joaquin County 
and California that should be included in the comparison? 

Approximately 3 – 5 cities that are comparable to the City of Stockton in 
population. 

 

8. Does the City desire regular status update reports throughout the project? If so, at 
what frequency (e.g., weekly, monthly)? 
Status update reports should be provided on a quarterly basis.  Specific dates 
will be finalized to coincide with other city dates. 

 
 

Thank you in advance for your answers to these questions. We appreciate 

your assistance. Sincerely, 

 
Jennifer Vincent 
Senior Business Development Specialist 

 
 

POSTED 10-05-17 
 
Q&A DURING MANDATORY PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 
 
PHASE IV FEE STUDY RFP Q & A  
 
City Staff: 
Makinde Falade (MF) 
Mark Martin (MM) 
Mary Garcia (MG) 
  
Consultants: 
Chris Fisher, Willdan Planning Services (WPS) 
Rick Williams, Michael Baker International (MBI) 
Joe Arbios, Safe Built (SB) 
Khushloo Hussain, Matrix Consulting Group (MCG) 
Jerry Wolf, Fiscal Choice Consulting (FCC) 
Jennifer Vincent, Berrydunn (BD) 
  
MM: All questions due by 10/5 at 5:00 p.m. All answers will be posted as soon as ready, but no 
later than 10/12. Final proposals due 10/19 at 2:00 p.m. at City Clerk's office. 
  
BEGIN Q & A 
  
MCG: Proposal mentions time tracking data, budget for CDD says time and motion study, is that 
the time tracking data the proposal references or is there separate time tracking data already 
being collected by department? 
  
MF: This is not going to be the only source of information we use. We do have data CDD started 
collecting one year ago via Accela where staff has to input time spent on each portion of permit 
processing. 
  



MCG: Still planning on doing a time and motion study? 
  
MM: Time and motion something CM requested to be included. Recommend to all consultants to 
assess whether it is needed in each case. Have alternative approach, bring to the table. 
  
MCG: RFP references workflow process, permit process, recommend improvement, has CDD 
already gone through an operational audit? 
  
MM: Yes, for the most part. Management Partners did a study in 2012. CDD implemented a 
number of their process improvement suggestions. This RFP is not intended to cover every single 
process, but to analyze key areas that have interdepartmental and intersectional activities. 
Example #1: An Engineer walks hardcopy plans several blocks to other departments so they can 
review and then send back. A recommendation to go digital would be expected. Example #2: We 
do have workflow for building permits that include MUD. However, MUD also has separate review 
processes that do not have workflows in place. Recommendation could be to create a workflow 
there. Consultants should plan on approximately 12 more processes from MUD that will need to 
be reviewed. 
  
MCG: Cost recovery, refund policy. Is there a current cost recovery in place? 
  
MM: Cost vs. refund? 
  
MCG: RFP speaks to specific policies, adoptive cost recovery process. 
  
MM: Yes and no. We would like best practice advice on our refunds policy. Building permit 
applications are straight forward. Have any plan check reviews or inspections be done? Building 
has steps in process where you could set various refund levels. Planning permits becomes more 
complex. When a large specific plan is applied for. At what point do you provide refunds? If staff 
has already reviewed a 200-page environmental document, and then the project dies, to what 
extent should the City view the fees collected as recovery cost? We have some procedures in 
place that need to be looked at and best practices recommended.  
Cost recovery model. History: In early 2000’s, CDD was set up as a full cost recovery model. We 
are a special revenue fund. Then there was the realization a couple years ago that we also 
accomplish a lot of general government activities that would be illegal for us to charge revenues 
to permits for those activities. Started to receive some monies out of the general fund to cover 
those things. This study needs to determine a percentage of how much is general government 
activity. 
  
MCG: Excel docs for annual updates requested in RFP. Does the City want basic worksheets 
where you can draft in factors or something more comprehensive for staffing changes, budget 
changes, to run scenarios for fees? 
  
MM: Not as robust as that. Looking for updates, anytime there are changes to a fee, even simple 
inflationary increases. Record that change and what the methodology was for that. Ability to 
expand beyond, as a management tool, any fee described, make sure fee methodology and 
purpose are clearly laid out. Purpose of fee, why we collect, how it is applied. In-depth description 
of proper application of that fee. So if in 10 years from now, no one here today is still working in 
the department, anyone can pick up that tool and understand what that fee was for and how it 
was applied. 
  



MCG: Two phases called for in RFP. For presentations and meetings with DOC/CC, are those 
expected at the end of each phase or at the end of the whole project? 
  
MM: End of each phase. Speaking to phases: CM requested to be done in phases. Component 
of project is to determine what kind of billable hourly rates we can charge. Conducting 
building/planning review as phase 1, and holding off on fire prevention and mud to phase 2, not 
feasible. They're going to overlap. During phase 1, should do an hourly cost analysis on all 
functions. Only way to determine cost recovery to permits specifically during phase 2. 
  
MBI: Is there a timeframe for the whole project? 
  
MM: Negotiation expected from vendors. Offer us a reasonable schedule based on staff 
availability. Expectation is that project will likely extend through 2019. Suggest building in a buffer 
to accommodate additional meetings that may be required with the DOC/CC. 
  
MCG: When was CDD's last fee study conducted? 
  
MM: Last development fee study was for Planning fees in 2010. It was a year-long process. Report 
went to DOC and the policy was shot down before going to council. Building fee study done in 
2008 (full blown fee study). Smaller, internal fee study in 2014-15. Purpose of the internal fee 
study was to reduce our 1,100 fee charge codes to under 500, make fees more reasonable, and 
to reduce revenues and costs to development community by approx. $1M. Fire prevention fee 
study, unknown.  
  
WPS: Are the results of those fee studies available? 
  
MM: Yes, in the report submitted to City Council on (get date). 
  
MCG: Is there a specific project budget that the City has in mind? 
  
MM: No. 
  
MCG: Anything particular happening in the department or City right now driving CDD to have a 
fee study done now? 
  
MM: Just the recognition that it’s needed. The staff study in 2015 was not as rigorous or extensive 
as what is needed now. We did not touch development & engineering fees at all in that study, 
only building permits and plan review were reviewed and updated. 
 
POSTED 09-25-17 
 
Section 1.28 in the Specifications was updated. 
 
1.28 MANDATORY PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE 
 

A mandatory pre-proposal conference will be held to discuss the RFP.  City staff 
will respond to questions from potential Proponents.  Each potential Proponent 
must attend this conference or its proposal will be rejected without review 
as non-responsive and eliminated from further consideration. The conference 
will be held on SEPTEMBER 28, 2017 at 10:00 a.m. promptly at the following 



location: 
 

345 N EL DORADO ST 
STOCKTON, CA  95202. 

 
Proponents may attend either in person or Conference Call by dialing (209)937-
8567.  Interested Proponents arriving or calling into the conference later than 10:00 
a.m. will not be admitted.   

 
 
POSTED 09-21-17 
 
1.  Communication – please send your communication via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is October 5, 2017. 
 
3. Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by October 12, 2017. 
 
4. Bids due- promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, October 19, 2017, City Clerk’s Office. 
 
 


